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SECTION 009115
ADDENDUM NUMBER 5

PARTICULARS

1.1 DATE: January 12, 2022

1.2 PROJECT:  Orangetown Town Hall Addition and Alterations

1.3 Owner :  Town of Orangetown 

1.4 Architect:  Lothrop Associates LLP Architects

TO:  ALL HOLDERS OF BID DOCUMENTS :

2.1 THIS ADDENDUM FORMS A PART OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND
MODIFIES THE  Original Bid  DOCUMENTS DATED November 9, 2021, WITH
AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS NOTED BELOW.

2.2 ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM IN THE SPACE PROVIDED IN
THE Bid Form .  FAILURE TO DO SO Will  DISQUALIFY THE BIDDER.

2.3 GENERAL:

A. Questions raised by RFI via email:
1. Are the $10M/$20M General Liability limits correct as indicated in Addendum 1?

(Architect's RFI #1G.13)
a. Yes, the limits are correct as stated. New York State has a Scaffold Law,

as well as other requirements.

2. Are there liquidated damages for this project?  (Architect's RFI #1G.14)
a. There are no requirements for liquidated damages on this project.

3. Prevailing pay rate schedule appears to be missing rates for Asbestos Worker &
Insulator, Asbestos Worker & Supervisor, Apprentice, or Journeyman. Is there an
updated schedule that includes these rates?  (Architect's RFI #1G.15)
a. An updated Prevailing Pay Rate Schedule is not available at this time.  We

have reached out to the NYS DOL, but have not yet received a response.
    

4. The expansion joints called out on A402, notes 11 and 15, are not listed in the
specifications.  Please advise. (Architect's RFI #1G.16)
a. See Section 079513 - Expansion Joint Cover Assemblies:  Part 2.2.

5. Drawing A501 note 12 says fiberglass, but the specification for column covers calls
for anodized aluminum. (Architect's RFI #1G.16)
a. There are both metal column covers and fiberglass column covers used on

this project.  Interior column covers are fiberglass as indicated on
Drawing A501, detail 12 and Section 066100 is applicable to those units.
 The exterior column located at A.5/9 is to be covered with the aluminum
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column cover and Section 057500 is applicable to this unit.

6. Addendum number 2 removed alternate 5 from the bid. Will you be reissuing the
alternate bid form? Please advise. (Architect's RFI #1G.17)
a. See Addendum 1.  Alternate numbers have been re-organized.  A revised

Section 004323-Alternates Form has been issued.

7. In addendum 1, asbestos report, it shows no abatement is required. Is there a report on
the area that abatement is called out in the specs, and is it possible to get an
abatement drawing? (Architect's RFI #1G.18)
a. Although there is no evidence of ACM, PCBs, or lead-based paint

materials in the samples previously taken and analyzed from within the
existing 1992 structure, abatement specifications have been included for
reference, should such materials that require abatement be encountered
during the course of the work of these contracts.  There is no abatement
drawing for this project.

8. Are other BMS manufacturers acceptable besides Honeywell? We have reached out
to Honeywell numerous times with no response. (Architect's RFI #1G.19)
a. As long as the alternate control manufacturer can meet the plans and

specifications and integrates the existing system with the new system, they
would be acceptable.

9. Please advise who is the current BMS contractor for the building? (Architect's RFI
#3H.01)
a. The current maintenance contractor for the existing Andover BMS

control system is Richmar Controls.  Contact Raf Sowacki,
rsowacki@richmarcontrols.com.  The BMS system is to be totally
integrated with the existing system.  See specification Section 230923.

10. Please clarify the symbology identified on Drawing E-001. The open triangle symbol
calls for 2 tel. and 2 data cables. The shaded triangle calls for the same except extend
into modular furniture. The majority of locations show one open triangle and two
shaded triangles. I'm not sure how to interperet this. Please advise. (Architect's RFI
#4E.06)
a. See revised drawings E-001 Issue 2, E-208 Issue 2, E-213 Issue 2 and E-218

Issue 2.

11. Drawing E-208 shows and open triangle and a split shaded triangle for Board Room
157. How many cables are required by these? (Architect's RFI #4E.06)
a. See revised drawings E-001 Issue 2, E-208 Issue 2, E-213 Issue 2 and E-218

Issue 2.

12. Do all floor box locations require AV cables and if so, what type? How many v/d for
floor boxes? (Architect's RFI #4E.06)
a. See revised drawings E-001 Issue 2, E-208 Issue 2, E-213 Issue 2 and E-218

Issue 2.

13. Per addendum 3, the camera cables will be pulled to room 118 instead of designated
IT closet on each floor. This will result in some of them being over length. Please
advise. (Architect's RFI #4E.06)
a. The Owner reserves the right to change the destination of the camera POE

cable(s) to either the nearest data closet or Room 118.  For those camera
locations that require cabling lengths that exceed the recommended
allowable length for proper signal strength, include the more expensive
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option in the bid proposal.

14. Our generator providers are asking for a spec on the generator ATS. Please advise.
(Architect's RFI #4E.07)
a. See new specification Section 263600 - Automatic Transfer Switch,

attached to this Addendum.

15. Addendum #1 and #3 state that the contractor must pay the required permit fees.
Since the Orangetown Building Department will be reviewing and issuing the permits
for this project, it seems counterproductive for the Owner to charge themselves for
permit fees. Please advise. (Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. The Town of Orangetown will waive building permit fees for this project.

Fees required by other jurisdictions or agencies, including county or state
agencies, will be paid for by the Town.  Paper work for filing for permits
shall be the responsibility of the contractor whose work is the subject of
such permits.

16. Please confirm that each prime contractor (GC, Plumbing, HVAC, Electric) are
responsible for completing and submitting their own permit applications and if each
prime contractor will be responsible for their fees for their trade. (Architect's RFI
#1G.20)
a. Each prime contractor is responsible for completing and submitting their

own permit applications.  The Town will pay for all permit application
fees.

17. The Soil Report requires a possible DEP Permit. Please confirm that this permit cost
will be paid for by the Owner or taken out of the allowance as there is no way for a
contractor to know what the cost of a DEP Permit will be, especially since the DEP
will not even speak with us until a permit has been completed. Please confirm.
(Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. The Town of Orangetown will waive building permit fees for this project.

Fees required by other jurisdictions or agencies, including county or state
agencies, will be paid for by the Town.  Paper work for filing for permits
shall be the responsibility of the contractor whose work is the subject of
such permits.

18. Addendum #2, Question 25 asked if the General Liability insurance of
$10,000,000/$20,000,000 was correct. This question was not answered. Please be
advised that General Liability insurance of $10,000,000/$20,000,000 is extremely
high and will add an excessive cost to the project. The standard insurance limits for
General Liability is $1,000,000/$2,000,000 per occurrence. Please confrirm that the
General Liabiltiy insurance limits should be $1,000,000/$2,000,000, which are
industry standards. (Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. The General Liability limits are correct as stated. New York State has a

Scaffold Law, as well as other requirements.

19. Is the asbestos in the 1959 Building to be removed by others since the building is
being demolished by others or is the General Contractor responsible for removing the
asbestos in the 1959 Building before the Owner demolishes the building? Please
advise. (Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. The asbestos abatement in the 1959 building is NOT included in this

contract.

20. Addendum #2 states that sprayed fireproofing is not require in the new addition.
However, the General Contractor has to patch spray fireproofing in the existing
building where mechanical work needs to be performed. Please provide a square
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footage of spray fireproofing to include in the bid or advise if this patch work can be
taken out of the allowance. (Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. For bidding purposes, assume an area of 75 square feet for spray

fireproofing patch work.

21. The Addenda made it clear that the GC is responsible for all site trenching outside the
footprint of the new addition for the electrical and plumbing contractors. The GC is
also responsible for maintaining the trenches, stone, bedding, etc. Please confirm that
the plumbing and electrical contractors are responsible for their own excavation,
backfill, trench, bedding, etc. for all work contained within the footprint of the
addition and in the existing building. In absense of a response, we will make this
assumption. (Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. The Plumbing and Electrical Contractors are responsible for their own

excavation, backfill, trenching, bedding, etc. associated with their work
within the footprint of the new addition or the existing building, and to a
distance not to exceed 5 feet beyond the perimeter of the building.

22. Addendum #3 indicates that all 7 alternates need to be accepted for the project
duration to be 660 days. As such, please confirm that if only 6 of the 7 alternates are
accepted, no additional time will be granted. (Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. If alternate GC-01 is accepted, the additional 110 calendar days is

provided exclusively for completing the alternate work only.  The Base Bid
work deadline remains at 550 calendar days for Substantial Completion.
 All other alternate work shall be completed within the 550 calendar days
allotted for Base Bid work.

23. The bidding documents indicated that Substantial Completion for the base bid work is
550 calendar days, which is 18 months. If all 7 alternates are accepted, the Substantial
Completion becomes 660 calendar days, which is 22 months. However, Phasing Plan
C-107 indicates a Substantial Completion of 24 months. The duration for this project
is still vague and needs further clarification. Please advise. (Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. The following Sequencing Note, Note 5, on Drawing C-107:  

"ESTIMATED SEQUENCING DURATION:
SEQUENCE 1:  THREE (3) MONTHS
SEQUENCE 2:  NINE (9) MONTHS
SEQUENCE 3:  NINE (9 ) MONTHS
SEQUENCE 4:  THREE (3) MONTHS"

is changed to read:
"ESTIMATED SEQUENCING DURATION:

SEQUENCE 1:  TWO (2) MONTHS
SEQUENCE 2:  SEVEN (7) MONTHS
SEQUENCE 3:  SEVEN (7) MONTHS
SEQUENCE 4:  TWO (2) MONTHS

24. Please prvide roof screen framing details and sizes. Structural drawing state to refer
to architectural drawings, however, details on drawing A561 do not provide sizes for
the framing members. (Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. Refer to drawings S-101 and S-103 for structural framing support for roof

screen.  Roof screens are to be designed by delegated design, in accordance
with Section 089200 - Louvered Equipment Screens.  Refer to drawing
11/A561 and 19/A561 for flashing details.    

25. Temporary ramp indicates a handrail is required but does not specify a material.
Please advise what this handrail should be made out of. (Architect's RFI #1G.20)
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a. The handrail for the temporary ramp shall be made of 1-1/2" diameter
round, Schedule 80, steel pipe in accordance with specification Section
055213 - Pipe and Tube Railings, with welded joints.

26. Specifications include an allowance of $25,000 for the purchase and delivery of
building signage, inclusive of interior and exterior signs, dimensional lettering, logos,
seals, and plaques. Who is responsible for the installation of the signs, the GC? Or
does the allowance include installation as well? Please clarify. (Architect's RFI
#1G.20)
a. The General Contractor is responsible for the installation of all signage, as

part of Base Bid.

27. Who is responsible to furnish and install the dishwasher shown in elevation 5/A610?
(Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. The dishwasher shall be furnished and installed by the General

Contractor.  Refer to the revised specification Section 113013 - Residential
Appliances, attached to this Addendum.  

28. Please confirm the floor mounted medallion shown on drawings A502, Detail 5, is
part of the signage allowance. Also, detail refers to detail 12./A402 which is
mounting detail for a wall-mounted signage system. If medallion is by General
Contractor, please provide proper mounting details. (Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. The floor medallion is to be a custom fabricated carpet medallion.  See

specification Section 096813 - Tile Carpeting, part 2.2 G.

29. Drawing A202, Elevation 3, depicts what looks to be a display case between column
lines 1.2 and 1.5. Is this indeed a new display case? If so, who is responsible to
furnish and install? If GC is responsible, please provide specifications, sections, and
details. (Architect's RFI #1G.20)
a. The General Contractor is responsible for furnishing and installing the

display case.  See new specification Section 101200 - Display Cases,
attached to this Addendum.

30. The alternate bid form does not include the alternate for C1 - Site work. Please
advise. (Architect's RFI #1G.21)
a. The original alternate numbers identified on the Bid Documents were

modified in Addendum 1 in order to separate the alternate work between
the multiple prime contracts. The original alternate C-1 has been changed
to alternate GC-06. The alternate description for alternate C-1 has been
modified in Addendum 3, item #53. "Alternate No. C-1" note on drawing
C-101 is changed to read "Alternate GC-06".

31. Floor Plan A113(B) does not indicate wood trim in the elevator lobby on the 3rd floor
as it does on the 1st and 2nd floors. However, cross section 2/A-201 does indicate
wood trim at the elevator. Unless clarified by Addendum, we assume Detail 2/A-201
is in error. (Architect's RFI #1G.22)
a. Drawing 2/A-201 is shown incorrectly.  There is no wood trim in the

elevator lobby on the 3rd floor.
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2.4 This Addendum consists of 6 PAGES .

CHANGES TO THE PROJECT MANUAL - TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS :

3.1 SECTION 263600 - AUTOMATIC TRANSFER SWITCH

A. Add new Section 263600 - Automatic Transfer Switch, attached to this Addendum.

3.2 SECTION 101200 - DISPLAY CASES

A. Add new Section 101200 - Display Cases, attached to this Addendum.

3.3 SECTION 113013 - RESIDENTIAL APPLIANCES

A. Remove and replace Section 113013 - Residential Appliances with revised section
attached to this Addendum.

CHANGES TO DRAWINGS:

4.1 DRAWING E-001 - ELECTRICAL SYMBOLS LIST, LIGHTING FIXTURE SCHEDULE
AND ABBREVIATIONS

A. Remove and replace Drawing E-001, Issue 1 with new drawing E-001, Issue 2 attached
to this Addendum.

4.2 DRAWING E-208 - ELECTRICAL LEVEL 01 PLAN (IT/DATA/SECURITY)

A. Remove and replace Drawing E-208, Issue 1 with new drawing E-208, Issue 2 attached
to this Addendum.

4.3 DRAWING E-213 - ELECTRICAL LEVEL 02 PLAN (IT/DATA/SECURITY)

A. Remove and replace Drawing E-213, Issue 1 with new drawing E-213, Issue 2 attached
to this Addendum.

4.4 DRAWING E-218 - ELECTRICAL LEVEL 03 PLAN (IT/DATA/SECURITY)

A. Remove and replace Drawing E-218, Issue 1 with new drawing E-218, Issue 2 attached
to this Addendum.

4.5 DRAWING A201 - BUILDING SECTIONS AND ELEVATIONS

A. Remove and replace Drawing A201 with new drawing A201, attached to this
Addendum.

END OF SECTION
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SECTION 101200
DISPLAY CASES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Recessed display cases.

1.2 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 061053 -- Miscellaneous Rough Carpentry:  Blocking and supports

B. Section 092116 - Gypsum Board Assemblies:  Concealed supports in metal stud walls.

1.3 REFERENCE STANDARDS

A. AAMA 2603 - Voluntary Specification, Performance Requirements and Test Procedures for
Pigmented Organic Coatings on Aluminum Extrusions and Panels (with Coil Coating
Appendix) 2017a.

B. ASTM B221 - Standard Specification for Aluminum and Aluminum-Alloy Extruded Bars,
Rods, Wire, Profiles, and Tubes 2021.

C. ASTM B221M - Standard Specification for Aluminum and Aluminum-Alloy Extruded
Bars, Rods, Wire, Profiles, and Tubes (Metric) 2021.

D. ASTM C1048 - Standard Specification for Heat-Strengthened and Fully Tempered Flat
Glass 2018.

E. ASTM E84 - Standard Test Method for Surface Burning Characteristics of Building
Materials 2021a.

1.4 SUBMITTALS

A. See Section 013000 - Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.

B. Product Data: Submit complete printed data and installation details indicating products to be
provided as specified.

C. Shop Drawings: Submit complete installation details. Include dimensioned elevations.

D. Samples: Submit samples of material and trim to illustrate finish, color, and texture.

1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Deliver display cases and materials to the Project site with manufacturer’s protective crate
covering and do not open until ready for use.

B. Protect display cases before, during, and after installation. In case of damage, immediately
provide necessary repairs and replacements.
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PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.1 MANUFACTURERS

A. Claridge Products and Equipment, Inc; Imperial Series Bulletin Board Cabinet:
 www.claridgeproducts.comle.

B. An approved equal .

C. Substitutions:  See Section 016000 - Product Requirements.

2.2 DISPLAY CASES

A. Recessed Display Case:  Factory-fabricated aluminum-framed display case with adjustable
glass shelves, finished interior, and aluminum trim on face to cover edge of recessed
opening.
1. Width:  4 feet .
2. Height:  5 feet .
3. Depth:  3-1/4 inches overall depth.
4. Inside Cabinet Depth:  1-1/2 inch.
5. Components:

a. Glazed Doors:  Sliding.
1) Number of Doors:  One pair .

b. Back Panel:  Tackable.

2.3 COMPONENTS

A. Aluminum Case Construction:  Aluminum side, bottom, and top panels fabricated from
extruded aluminum shapes.

B. Glazed Sliding Doors:
1. 3/16 inch clear tempered glass with ground-in finger pulls.
2. Door track:  Extruded aluminum glass shoe with bottom rollers and top plastic guide.
3. Lock:  flat key tumbler .

C. Tackable Back Panel:  Fabric laminated to cork  on hardboard .
1. Cork Thickness:  1/2 inch .
2. Fabric:  Polyester fabric ; minimum fabric weight:  13 oz/sq yd.
3. Color, Texture, Weave, and Pattern:  As selected from manufacturer's full range.
4. Surface Burning Characteristics:  Flame spread index of 25, maximum, and smoke

developed index of 450, maximum, when tested in accordance with ASTM E84.

2.4 MATERIALS

A. Aluminum Extrusions:  ASTM B221 (ASTM B221M), 6063 alloy, T5 temper.
1. Finish:  Factory finished; AAMA 2603: Powder coat; color as selected by Architect

from manufacturer's full range of options.

B. Plywood:  Softwood plywood with veneer core, waterproof glue, 3/4 inch thick.

C. Heat-Strengthened and Fully Tempered Glass:  ASTM C1048, Kind FT.
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PART 3 EXECUTION

3.1 INSTALLATION

A. Locate fastening devices to secure cases securely to back and sides of rough opening.

B. Install recessed display cases plumb and level  in wall openings , 24 inches  from finished
floor to inside bottom of display case .

C. Clean case and glass using manufacturers recommended procedures.

D. Provide mitered and wrapped hairline joints for all trims.

END OF SECTION
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SECTION 113013
RESIDENTIAL APPLIANCES

PART 1  GENERAL

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES

A. Kitchen appliances.

1.2 RELATED REQUIREMENTS

A. Section 260583 - Wiring Connections:  Electrical connections for appliances.

1.3 REFERENCE STANDARDS

A. UL (DIR) - Online Certifications Directory Current Edition.

1.4 SUBMITTALS

A. See Section 013000 - Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures.

B. Product Data:  Manufacturer's data indicating dimensions, capacity, and operating features
of each piece of residential equipment specified.  Include manufacturer's installation
instructions for each appliance to be installed.

C. Copies of Warranties:  Submit manufacturer warranty and ensure that forms have been
completed in Owner's name and registered with manufacturer.

1.5 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Manufacturer Qualifications:  Company specializing in manufacturing products specified in
this section, with not less than three years of documented experience.

B. Electric Appliances:  Listed and labeled by UL (DIR) and complying with NEMA Standards
(National Electrical Manufacturers Association).

1.6 WARRANTY

A. See Section 017800 - Closeout Submittals, for additional warranty requirements.

B. Provide five (5) year manufacturer warranty on refrigeration system of refrigerators.

C. Provide ten (10) year manufacturer warranty on magnetron tube of microwave ovens.

D. Provide ten (10) year manufacturer warranty on tub and door liner of dishwashers.

PART 2  PRODUCTS

2.1 KITCHEN APPLIANCES

A. Refrigerator :  Free-standing , top-mounted freezer , and frost-free .
1. Capacity:  Total minimum storage of 18 cubic ft; minimum 15 percent freezer

capacity.
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2. Energy Usage:  Minimum 20 percent more energy efficient than energy efficiency
standards set by U.S. Department of Energy (DOE).

3. Features:  Include glass shelves .
4. Exterior Finish:  Stainless steel .
5. Manufacturers:

a. Frigidaire Home Products:  www.frigidaire.com.
b. GE Appliances:  www.geappliances.com.
c. Whirlpool Corp:  www.whirlpool.com.
d. Substitutions:  See Section 016000 - Product Requirements.

B. Microwave :  Under-cabinet mounted .
1. Capacity:  0.9 cubic ft .
2. Power:  1000 watts.
3. Features:  Include turntable, 2-speed exhaust fan, built-in trim kit, and undercabinet

mounting kit .
4. Exterior Finish:  Black.
5. Manufacturers:

a. Frigidaire Home Products:  www.frigidaire.com.
b. GE Appliances:  www.geappliances.com.
c. Whirlpool Corp:  www.whirlpool.com.
d. Substitutions:  See Section 016000 - Product Requirements.

C. Dishwasher :  Undercounter .
1. Controls:  Solid state electronic.
2. Wash Levels:  Three (3).
3. Cycles:  Six (6) , including normal, rinse and hold, short, china/crystal, and pot and

pan .
4. Features:  Include rinse aid dispenser, optional no-heat dry, optional water

temperature boost, adjustable upper rack, and adjustable lower rack .
5. Finish:  Stainless steel  , color as indicated .
6. Manufacturers:

a. Frigidaire Home Products :  www.frigidaire.com/#sle.
b. GE Appliances:  www.geappliances.com.
c. Bosch:  www.bosch-home.com .
d. Substitutions:  See Section 016000 - Product Requirements.

PART 3  EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION

A. Verify utility rough-ins are provided and correctly located.

3.2 INSTALLATION

A. Install in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.

B. Anchor built-in equipment in place.

3.3 CLEANING

A. Remove packing materials from equipment and properly discard.

bhuttman
Highlight
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B. Wash and clean equipment.

END OF SECTION
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